

# **COMPLAINTS RESOLUTION POLICY**

This Policy relates to InsureAfrica Underwriting Managers (Pty) Ltd and InsureAfrica Administrators Holdings (Pty) Ltd ("the Company"), licensed with the Financial Sector Conduct Authority ("FSCA") as a Financial Services Provider ("FSP") with licence numbers 15059 & 44991 respectively.

# **Contents**

1.	INTRODUCTION	2
2.	DEFINITIONS	2
3	PURPOSE OF A COMPLAINTS POLICY	6
4	ESTABLISHING A COMPLAINTS MANAGEMENT FRAMEWORK	7
5	ALLOCATION OF RESPONSIBILITIES	9
6	RESPONSIBLE AND ADEQUATE DECISION-MAKING	10
7	CATEGORISATION OF COMPLAINTS	10
8	THE INTERNAL COMPLAINTS HANDLING PROCESS	11
9	INTERNAL COMPLAINT ESCALATION & REVIEW PROCESS	12
10	DECISIONS RELATING TO COMPLAINTS	14
11	ENGAGEMENT WITH THE OMBUD & REPORTING	15
12	REVISION HISTORY	
Annex	ure A	16

This Policy Statement has been approved by the Board of Directors of the above listed Financial Services Provider.

Signed on behalf of the Board on this 25<sup>th</sup> day of August 2020.

Andries Everhardus Labuschagne

Director

#### 1. INTRODUCTION

The Company is committed to a high service standard, rendering financial services with integrity, the speedy resolve of complaints and the overall improvement of processes even in the instance where a complaint may be viewed as 'invalid' in terms of the relevant policy wording. In this regard each and every concern counts as valuable feedback that requires addressing in a meaningful manner.

The object of this complaints resolution policy is to formalize the process in which dissatisfaction is lodged, acknowledged, investigated, resolved and leads to overall improvement/s.

It is furthermore important that each and every staff member receives extensive training in this regard, that this complaints resolution policy is made easily accessible to all policyholders, that this complaints resolution policy is continuously reassessed by senior management and that overall improvement/s are actioned as a consequence of feedback received from policyholders.

Please note that TCF and PPR (especially with regards to complaints) form part of each and every employee's annual performance evaluation report, which is to be completed prior to any potential salary increase and/ or promotion.

Important and guiding material/ bodies include all six Treating Customers Fairly (TCF) Outcomes, the Financial Sector Conduct Authority (FSCA) and the Policyholder Protection Rules (PPR).

# 2. **DEFINITIONS**

### 2.1 Complaint

Complaint in terms of the Policyholder Protection Rules (PPR) means an expression of dissatisfaction by a person to a provider or, to the knowledge of the provider, to the provider's service supplier relating to a financial product or financial service provided or offered by that provider which indicates or alleges, regardless of whether such an expression of dissatisfaction is submitted together with or in relation to a client query, that -

- (a) the provider or its service supplier has contravened or failed to comply with an agreement, a law, a rule, or a code of conduct which is binding on the provider or to which it subscribes;
- (b) the provider or its service supplier's maladministration or wilful or negligent action or failure to act, has caused the person harm, prejudice, distress or substantial inconvenience; or
- (c) the provider or its service supplier has treated the person unfairly;

All complaints lodged with the Ombudsman/ FAIS/ FSCA is to be dealt with by the Insurer exclusively. All documents and information relating to such a complaint, will be sent to the Insurer.

Note that there is no service fee charged for registering a complaint.

The Treating Customers Fairly (TCF) Outcomes include:

- 1. Customers need to feel confident that TCF is central to our culture;
- 2. Products are designed, marketed and sold to the right customer, meeting their needs;
- 3. Customers receive clear information that is timely and relevant to them;
- 4. Customers receive suitable product/ sales advice that takes their circumstances into account;
- 5. Products and services perform as expected and the service is of an acceptable standard;
- 6. There are no unreasonable barriers for customers to change or switch products, claim or complain.

# 2.2 Complainant

Complainant means a person who submits a complaint and includes a -

- (a) client;
- (b) person nominated as the person in respect of whom a product supplier should meet financial product benefits or that persons' successor in title;
- (c) person whose life is insured under a financial product that is an insurance policy;
- (d) person that pays a premium or an investment amount in respect of a financial product;
- (e) member;
- (f) person whose dissatisfaction relates to the approach, solicitation marketing or advertising material or an advertisement in respect of a financial product, financial service or related service of the provider,

who has a direct interest in the agreement, financial product or financial service to which the complaint relates, or a person acting on behalf of a person referred to in (a) to (f);

# 2.3 Client query

Client query means a request to the provider or the provider's service supplier by or on behalf of a client, for information regarding the provider's financial products, financial services or related processes, or to carry out a transaction or action in relation to any such product or service.

# 2.4 Compensation payment

**Compensation payment** means a payment, whether in monetary form or in the form of a benefit or service, by or on behalf of a provider to a complainant to compensate the complainant for a proven or estimated financial loss incurred as a result of the provider's contravention, non-compliance, action, failure to act, or unfair treatment forming the basis of the complaint, where the provider accepts liability for having caused the loss concerned, but excludes any -

- (a) goodwill payment;
- (b) payment contractually due to the complainant in terms of the financial product or financial service concerned; or
- (c) refund of an amount paid by or on behalf of the complainant to the provider where such payment was not contractually due;

and includes any interest on late payment of any amount referred to in (b) or (c);

### 2.5 Member

Member in relation to a complainant means a member of a -

- (a) pension fund as defined in section 1 (1) of the Pension Funds Act, 1956 (Act 52 of 1956);
- (b) friendly society as defined in section 1 (1) of the Friendly Societies Act, 1956 (Act 25 of 1956);
- (c) medical scheme as defined in section 1(1) of the Medical Schemes Act, 1998(Act131 of 1998);or
- (d) group scheme as contemplated in the Policyholder Protection Rules made under section 62 of the Long-term Insurance Act, 1998, and section 55 of the Short-term Insurance Act, 1998.

#### 2.6 Outcomes of a Complaint

# 2.6.1 Rejected

Rejected in relation to a complaint means that a complaint has not been upheld and the provider regards the complaint as finalised after advising the complainant that it does not intend to take any further action to resolve the complaint and includes complaints regarded by the provider as unjustified or invalid, or where the complainant does not accept or respond to the provider's proposals to resolve the complaint.

There are two variations of a rejected complaint:

- a) Invalid: the complainant does not accept or respond to proposals to resolve the complaint within 7 days. This includes sending relevant documentation, acting upon the advice of FSP as well as not being able to reach the complainant via telephone, SMS and E-mail (if applicable);
- b) Unjustified: the policy has been met, complainant has been treated fairly as far as possible, there is no legal leg to stand on to assist complainant, complainant refuses to accept outcome of merit assessment and nothing further can be done to assist complainant.

# 2.6.2 Upheld

Upheld means that a complaint has been finalised wholly (complainant got exactly what he/ she was looking for) or partially (complainant and FSP found middle ground) in favour of the complainant.

There are also two variations of a wholly or an upheld complaint:

- a) **Compensation Payment:** to compensate a complainant for a proven or estimated financial loss incurred as a result of the FSP's wrongdoing. This is either:
  - Payment Contractually due: the complainant should have received the assistance and help from the start, a justified complaint;
  - ii. Payment not Contractually due: the complainant does not have legal standing or a legal argument, however, due to the poor handling by FSP in the form of negligence, FSP for example refunds the complainant his/ her premiums and cancels the complainant.
- b) Goodwill Payment: Goodwill payment means a payment, whether in monetary form or in the form of a benefit or service, by or on behalf of a provider to a complainant as an expression of goodwill aimed at resolving a complaint, where

the provider does not accept liability for any financial loss to the complainant as a result of the matter complained about.

# 2.7 Reportable Complaint

Reportable complaint means any complaint other than a complaint that has been -

- (a) upheld immediately by the person who initially received the complaint;
- (b) upheld within the provider's ordinary processes for handling client queries in relation to the type of financial product or financial service complained about, provided that such process does not take more than five business days from the date the complaint is received; or
- (c) submitted to or brought to the attention of the provider in such a manner that the provider does not have a reasonable opportunity to record such details of the complaint as may be prescribed in relation to reportable complaints.

# 2.8 Internal Complaints Review and Escalation Process

Internal Complaints Review and Escalation Process means the system and procedures established and maintained by the FSP in accordance with the General Code of Conduct for the resolution of reportable complaints lodged against the FSP by complainants.

# 2.9 Complaint Dispute Facilitator

Complaint Dispute Facilitator refers to an impartial, senior functionary within the provider, or who has been appointed by the provider, to manage the internal complaints escalation and review process.

#### 3 PURPOSE OF A COMPLAINTS POLICY

In terms of section 17(1)(a) of the General Code of Conduct for Authorised Financial Services Providers and Representatives ("the General Code of Conduct") a provider must establish, maintain and operate an adequate and effective complaints management framework, in order to ensure the effective resolution of complaints and the fair treatment of complainants.

The complaints management framework must be based on the following outcomes:

- Is proportionate to the nature, scale and complexity of the provider's business and risks;
- Is appropriate for the business model, policies, services, and clients of the provider;
- Enables complaints to be considered after taking reasonable steps to gather and investigate all
  relevant and appropriate information and circumstances, with due regard to the fair treatment
  of complainants;
- Does not impose unreasonable barriers to complainants; and
- Must address and provide for the matters as contained in Part XI of the General Code of Conduct.

In order to achieve the abovementioned outcomes, the organisation has adopted a complaints policy which outlines the organisation's commitment towards the fair, transparent and effective resolution of complaints. The organisation will also ensure that the Complaints Management Framework is regularly reviewed in order to ensure the effectiveness of same.

### 4 ESTABLISHING A COMPLAINTS MANAGEMENT FRAMEWORK

The organisation is committed towards rendering financial services with the proper due skill, care and diligence and in the best interests of its clients.

Despite the organisation's high service standards there may be instances where a client nevertheless prefers to submit a formal complaint against the organisation. In such instances the organisation will follow the complaints management framework as outlined below.

The FSP is committed towards a transparent and accessible complaints resolution process that is fair to all parties involved. In order to achieve these outcomes, the FSP undertakes as follows:

- The organisation's complaints management framework incorporates the following features, which the organisation is committed to enforcing at all times:
  - Relevant objectives, key principles and the proper allocation of responsibilities for dealing with complaints across the business of the organisation;

- Appropriate performance standards and remuneration and reward strategies (internally and where any functions are outsourced) in order for complaints management to ensure objectivity and impartiality;
- Documented procedures for the appropriate management and categorisation of complaints which include expected timeframes and provides for circumstances under which these timeframes may be extended;
- · Documented procedures which clearly define the escalation, decision-making, monitoring, oversight and review processes within the complaints management framework;
- Appropriate complaint record keeping, monitoring and analysis of complaints, and reporting to executive management, the board of directors and any relevant committee of the board on –
  - · Identified risks, trends and action taken in response thereto; and
  - The effectiveness and outcomes of the complaints management framework.
- Appropriate communication with complainants and persons representing complainants on the complaints and the complaints processes and procedures;
- Appropriate engagement between the organisation and the relevant Ombud;
- Compliance with requirements for reporting to the Regulator and public reporting in accordance with part XI of the General Code of Conduct.
- A process for managing complaints relating to the organisation's representatives and service suppliers, insofar as such complaints relate to services provided in connection with the organisation's financial products, financial services or related services, which process will:
  - Enable the organisation to reasonably satisfy itself that the representative or service supplier has adequate complaints management processes in place to ensure the fair treatment of complainants;
  - Provide for the monitoring and analysis by the organisation of aggregated complaints data in relation to the complaints received by its representatives and service suppliers and their outcomes;
  - Include effective referral processes between the organisation and its representatives and service suppliers for handling and monitoring complaints that are submitted directly to either of them and require referral to the other for resolution; and
  - · Include processes to ensure that complainants are appropriately informed of the process being followed and the outcome of the complaint.

- The organisation will regularly monitor the complaints management framework.
- The organisation will resolve client complaints by means of a practical resolution process that is managed effectively.
- The organisation will train and empower all relevant staff members in order to facilitate and resolve complaints impartially.
- The organisation will deal with complaints in a timely and fair manner, with each compliant receiving proper due consideration.
- The organisation will take the necessary steps to investigate and respond promptly to a complainant.
- Where deemed necessary, the organisation will appoint an independent mediator in order to resolve the complaint.
- Where the complaint is resolved in favour of the complainant, the organisation will offer the appropriate level of redress to the complainant without delay.
- The organisation will maintain a record of all complaints for a period of 5 years together with an indication of whether or not the complaint has been resolved.
- The organisation will investigate, and where necessary, take appropriate action in order to avoid and prevent similar circumstances which gave rise to the complaint.
- The organisation will ensure the recording of complaints and complaints-related information in an accurate, efficient and secure manner, and will establish and maintain appropriate processes for reporting of complaints related information to its governing body.
- The organisation is committed to ensuring that its complaints processes and procedures are transparent, visible, and accessible through channels that are appropriate to the organisation's clients.

### 5 ALLOCATION OF RESPONSIBILITIES

- The board of directors of the organisation is responsible for effective complaints management. In the absence of a board of directors, the governing body and key individual of the organisation will be responsible.
- The board of directors or governing body and the key individual of the organisation will therefore oversee and approve the effectiveness and implementation of the organisation's complaints management framework.

The internal complaint review and escalation process may be delegated to the senior Complaint Dispute Facilitator, and any queries relating to the aforementioned process must be directed to same.

#### 6 RESPONSIBLE AND ADEQUATE DECISION-MAKING

- Any person in the organisation that is responsible for making decisions or recommendations in respect of complaints generally or a specific complaint must –
  - · Be adequately trained;
  - Have an appropriate mix of experience, knowledge and skills in complaints handling, fair treatment of customers, the subject matter of the complaints concerned and relevant legal and regulatory matters;
  - · Not be subject to a conflict of interest; and
  - · Be adequately impowered to make impartial decisions or recommendations.

### 7 CATEGORISATION OF COMPLAINTS

- The organisation categorises reportable complaints in accordance with the following nine categories:
  - Complaints relating to the design of a financial product, financial service or related service, including the fees, premiums or other charges related to that financial product or financial service;
  - · Complaints relating to information provided to clients;
  - Complaints relating to advice;
  - · Complaints relating to financial product or financial service performance;
  - · Complaints relating to service to clients, including complaints relating to premium or investment contribution collecting or lapsing of a financial product;
  - · Complaints relating to financial product accessibility, changes or switches, including complaints relating to redemptions of investments;
  - Complaints relating to complaints handling;
  - · Complaints relating to insurance risk claims, including non-payment of claims; and
  - · Other Complaints.

- Where the organisation considers it necessary to add additional categories relevant to its financial products, financial services and / or client base, it will do so in order to support the effectiveness of the organisation's complaints management framework, and by doing so enhancing improved outcomes and processes for its clients.
- The organisation will categorise, record and report on reportable complains by identifying the category of complaint to which the complaint most closely relates and group complaints accordingly.

How to lodge a complaint should you feel that any or all of the above, in terms of the above categories and TCF Outcomes, could have been better handled by FSP. How to lodge a complaint should you feel dissatisfied with any aspect of your dealings with FSP:

- a. When logging the complaint ensure that you include all the relevant information for a speedy resolution; this includes the staff member/s involved, your case or product details, any supporting documents and the relevant dates/ times relevant to your dissatisfaction. The reason for your dissatisfaction must be clear in order for FSP to investigate diligently;
- You may send your complaint to company details provided. Note that complaints logged using
  a telephone voice recording will be reduced to writing by the officer assigned to attend to
  your complaint;

You will **receive confirmation** that your complaint has been received; the name of the person dealing with your complaint within **2 working days** from receipt of your complaint.

# 8 THE INTERNAL COMPLAINTS HANDLING PROCESS

- a) Upon contacting you, whether by telephone or email, the person dealing with your complaint will introduce him/ herself and:
  - i) Ask you what your **preferred outcome** of the complaint would be? Please refer to the outcomes of a complaint mentioned above but do not be discouraged by the terminology, the person dealing with your complaint will listen to whatever reason you have for your dissatisfaction;
  - ii) Answer any and all **questions** to the best of his/ her ability;

- iii) Request your availability/ preferred times for follow-up calls and preferred communications medium for feedback (e-mail/ phone call/ SMS/ etc.);
- iv) Advise you to kindly **expect feedback within 7 days**, **alternatively 3 days** where time is of the essence such as where a Court date is involved;
- v) Diarize the file for 7 or 3 days to provide feedback to you but commence investigation immediately;
- vi) It is important that you cooperate by providing copies of all relevant evidence and correspondence;
- vii) Should the matter remain unresolved after 7 or 3 days have passed and feedback has been provided, to diarize the complaints file in order to give feedback every 14 days;
- viii) You may escalate the matter internally and change the person dealing with your complaint where he/she did not attend to your complaint as per the 3/7/14 day diary period (to receive feedback/ assistance) as mentioned above. Simply follow the same steps as per clause 6 and advise that you wish to escalate the matter;
- b) Should the matter be rejected as above, you will be provided with all reference numbers/ information and contact numbers of the Ombud/ Regulatory Body to take the matter further against us.

### 9 INTERNAL COMPLAINT ESCALATION & REVIEW PROCESS

- Through the adoption of this policy, the organisation establishes an appropriate internal complaints escalation and review process.
- The organisation is committed to ensuring that the procedures within the complaints escalation and review process is not overly complicated and does not impose unduly burdensome paperwork or other administrative requirements on complainants.
- The internal complaint escalation and review process
  - · follows a balanced approach, which bears in mind the legitimate interests of all parties involved, including the fair treatment of complainants;
  - provides for the internal escalation of complex or unusual complaints at the request of the initial complaint handler;
  - provides for complainants to escalate complaints not resolved to their satisfaction;

· as specified previously, is allocated to the senior Complaint Dispute Facilitator, who is an impartial, senior functionary within the organisation, and is appointed by the organisation in order to manage the internal escalation and review process.

In the event that the complainant is dissatisfied with the outcome of their complaint, the matter may be referred to our Insurer. The insurer details have been noted in the policy terms & conditions and will be provided at the complaint handling stage.

In the event that your matter/complaint is rejected and you wish to escalate the matter, you may contact the Insurer directly (details will be provided upon request).

Should your complaint be against the Company / Insurer, please lodge your complaint with the relevant Ombudsman.

• When the complaint is pertaining to a Short-term (non-life) product; the matter will be referred to the **Ombud for Short-term Insurance**. The procedure for lodging a complaint may be found on the website for the Ombud for Short-term Insurance (<u>www.osti.co.za</u>) or you may obtain it directly from the Ombud at the following contact details:

Tel: (011) 726 8900 | Share call: 0860 726 890

Fax: (011) 726 5501

E-mail address: info@osti.co.za

Address: Sunnyside Office Park, 5th Floor, Building D, 32 Princess of Wales Terrace,

**Parktown** 

Postal Address: P O Box 32334 Braamfontein, 2017

• When the complaint is pertaining to a Long-term (life) product; the matter will be referred to the **Ombud for Long-term Insurance**. The procedure for lodging a complaint may be found on the website for the Ombud for Long-term Insurance (<u>www.ombud.co.za</u>) or you may obtain it directly from the Ombud at the following contact details:

Tel: (021) 657 5000 | Share call: 0860 103 236

Fax: (021) 674 0951

E-mail address: info@ombud.co.za

Address: 3rd Floor Sunclare Building, 21 Dreyer Street, Claremont, Cape Town, 7700

Postal Address: Private Bag X45, Claremont, 7735

Should you have a complaint against the intermediary (e.g. a broker/ sales person

selling you the product) the complaint may be lodged with FSCA (Financial Sector

Conduct Authority) online via www.fsca.co.za/Pages/Contact-Us

Alternatively, a complaint may logged with the FAIS Ombud. A complaint form needs to

be completed, which can be downloaded from the FAIS Ombud's website

(www.faisombud.co.za). The complaints registration form is also available from the

FAIS Ombud at the following contact numbers:

Telephone: (012) 762 5000 / (012) 470 9080

Fax: (086 764 1422 / (012) 348 3447

E-mail address: info@faisombud.co.za

Address: Sussex Office Park; Ground Floor, Block B; 473 Lynnwood Road Cnr

Lynnwood Road & Sussex Ave, Lynnwood, 0081

Postal address: PO Box 74571, Lynnwood Ridge, 0040

10 **DECISIONS RELATING TO COMPLAINTS** 

Where a complaint is upheld, any commitment by the organisation to make a compensation

payment, goodwill payment or to take any other action, must at all times be carried out without

undue delay and within the agreed timeframes.

Where a complaint is rejected, the organisation will provide the complainant with clear and

adequate reasons for the decision, and will also inform the complainant of the organisation's

escalation or review process. The organisation will also inform the complainant of any time

limits relevant to the escalation or review process.

The organisation will clearly and transparently communicate the availability and contact details

of the relevant Ombud to complainants at the start of the relationship, and in relevant periodic

communications. The organisation will also display and make available information regarding

the relevant Ombud on its premises and website.

#### 11 ENGAGEMENT WITH THE OMBUD & REPORTING

- The organisation is committed to transparent engagement with any relevant Ombud in relation to its complaints.
- In light of the above, the organisation will monitor determinations, publications and guidance issued by any relevant Ombud with a view to identifying failings or risks in the organisation's policies, services or practices
- The organisation will maintain open and honest communication and co-operation between itself and any Ombud with which it deals.
- The organisation is also committed to resolving a complaint before a final determination or ruling is made by an Ombud, or through the organisation's internal escalation process, without impeding or unduly delaying a complainant's access to an Ombud.
- The organisation will ensure that it has the appropriate processes in place to ensure compliance with any prescribed requirements for reporting complaints related information to any designated authority, or to the public as may be required by the Regulator.

### 12 REVISION HISTORY

Version	Date	Author	Organisation	Revision		
1.0	04.12.2017	N Kreft-Rossouw	IAG – Legal Manager	Created policy		
2.0	13.07.2018	N Kreft-Rossouw	IAG – Legal Manager	Updated FSP details		
3.0	24.07.2020	N Kreft-Rossouw	IAG – Legal Manager	Updated Policy in terms of the Amendments to the General Code of Conduct Amendments to fit & proper requirements		
4.0	22.09.2022	N Kreft-Rossouw	IAG – Legal Manager	General Review		
5.0	28.06.2023	N Kreft-Rossouw	IAG – Legal Manager	General updated to include escalation procedure to Insurer		

# **COMPLAINT FORM**

	ty Number:				
	ct Number:				
Physic	cal Address:				
Policy	Number:				
Deale	rship:				
	laint Date: lainant Name:			eived By: tact Number:	
e of Comp	laint:				
	Service Del	ivery		Delay in claims sett	lement
	Lack of Fee	dback		Claim Rejection	
	Policy Docu	ımentation		Cover	
	Other (plea	ise describe fully)			
		UM Complaints Resol			
	ie in ac milich dei	all as is necessary the	reaso	ns for your complain	τ:

Please de achieve:	escribe in as much deta	ail as is necessary y	our desired outcom	e or what you wo	uld like t
Please in	dicate any other factors	you would like to c	onsider:		
_					

Required documentation (if applicable). Please provide all documentation that you believe would
assist us in speedily resolving your complaint. Please rick relevant attachments:
Policy Schedule Rejection Letter Other
If Other, please specify:
Please indicate whether this is the first complaint of this nature or whether you have complained
regarding this matter to any other party previously and if so, please provide full details of the outcome
thereof:
Signature of Complainant (Client):
Signature of Complainant (Client):
Date: